
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
The Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 

17 February 2023. 
 
To:  Members of the Older Persons Sub-Committee (Councillors M Freeman, 
R Goodchild, T Morris, S Owen, G Perham and F Kharawala) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Older Persons Sub-Committee to 
be held on Thursday, 2 March 2023 commencing at 10.00 am in the The Chamber, 
The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 
1HD. *remote attendance may also be possible  
    

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) The Localism Act 2011 and the Code of Conduct requires Councillors to 
declare any pecuniary interests, other registrable interests or sensitive interests 
in items on the meeting agenda, which are not already included in the Register 
of Interests. Members may choose to declare interests already listed in the 
Register for clarity and transparency. 
 
(ii) For disclosable pecuniary interests, Members must leave the room and 
not participate in discussion or voting, unless a dispensation has been granted. 

 
 
(iii) For other registrable or non-registrable interests which directly relate to 
the financial interest of a Member, a relative or close associate, councillors may 
speak on the matter only if members of the public may also speak at the 
meeting. Thereafter, Members should leave the room and not participate in 
discussion or voting, unless a dispensation has been granted.  
 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


OLDER PERSONS SUB-COMMITTEE Thursday, 2 March 2023 
 

 

 

(iv) The Council/Committee/Sub-Committee is asked to consider approving 
any requests for dispensations to speak/vote on any agenda item in 
accordance with the Dispensations Procedure.  
 
 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(e)(f)(g) and 3(h). 
 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6) 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Older 
Persons Sub-Committee meeting held on 17 November 2022 (attached) in 
accordance with Standing Order 12.  
(b) To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous 
meeting (if appropriate). 
 

5.   MARIGOLD HOUSE UPDATE  

 

 By invitation, representatives of Care is Central and Central Bedfordshire 
Council will attend the meeting to give an update on the Marigold House 
project.  
 

6.   COMMUNITY AGENT SCHEME UPDATE (Pages 7 - 14) 

 

 By invitation, a representative of Bedfordshire Rural Communities Charity will 
attend the meeting to give an update on the Community Agent initiative 
(attached). 
 

7.   TECHNICAL SUPPORT HELPLINE (Pages 15 - 18) 

 

 To receive a verbal update regarding the Citizens Online digital support project 
and tablet lending scheme (report attached). 
 

8.   UK NETWORK OF AGE FRIENDLY COMMUNITIES REPORT (Pages 19 - 

32) 

 

 To receive and note report (attached) providing updates on application to the 
UK Network of Age Friendly Communities and to consider recommendations 
contained therein regarding next steps following application approval.  
 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



 

Page 27 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

OLDER PERSONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 17 NOVEMBER  2022 AT 1000 HOURS 
 

Present:  Councillors  G Perham   
             J M Freeman  
             S Owen - Chair 
             T Morris 
    R Goodchild 
            

                   Also in attendance:  S Sandiford, Deputy Town Clerk 
  N Bailey, Cultural & Economic Services  
  Support Officer 
  M Jahn, Committee Officer 
 
           Joining remotely: I Hanton, Development & Commissioning  
  Manager, Central Bedfordshire Council 
  H Dobson, Managing Director, Citizens  
  On-Line 
  L Stainsby, Digital Champions Co-ordinator 
  Citizens Online 

 J Hunt, Bedfordshire Rural Communities Charity 
     
            Members of the Public: 1 

  
62/OP     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Cllr Kharawala and the Town 
Clerk. 
 

63/OP     DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested.  
 

 64/OP QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

 A member of the public and representative of the Leighton-Linslade Helpers 
spoke to inform the Sub-Committee that plans were in progress to develop the 
community offer at the Meadow Way Community Centre and that this might 
include activities for the 55+ age group.  

 
 65/OP MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

(a) The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the Older Persons Sub 
Committee held on 19 August 2022.  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Older Persons Sub 
Committee held on 19 August 2022 be approved and signed as a correct 
record.    
 
(b) Updates from previous meeting: 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Older Persons Sub-Committee 17 NOVEMBER 2022  
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 28 

 
Minute reference 57/OP (Questions from the Public): Members were informed 
that letters had been sent to all supermarkets regarding the question of digital 
exclusion in accessing supermarket loyalty schemes, but as yet no responses 
had been received.  A follow up letter would be sent to the supermarkets and 
also to the local Member of Parliament.                            

 
  66/OP CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL UPDATE  
 

By invitation, Ian Hanton of Central Bedfordshire Council gave an update on the 
day centre offer for older residents, as well as the building work on the new 
Marigold House adult care facility. The build was slightly behind schedule but it 
was anticipated that Marigold House would be completed by the middle of 2023 
and it was hoped the moving of residents from the existing Westlands facility 
would be completed by December 2023.  Care is Central, a company wholly 
owned by the local authority, would operate the care facilities at the new home 
and a manager had been recruited, who would be in post from the end of 
December 2022/early January 2023, to run both the care home and day centre 
operation.    
 
In addition to provision of activities within the day centre and care home, it was 
recognised as important to offer residents opportunities to go out into the 
community to mix with other people.   
 
A question was raised regarding the amount of parking offered at the site and if 
this would be sufficient for both the care home and the day centre needs.  It was 
confirmed there was parking at the site and drop-off facilities for mini-buses and 
other vehicles.  There was not, however, a public bus stop planned for outside 
the centre but this would be looked at in the coming months along with a parking 
policy for the site. 
 
The Sub-Committee thanked Ian Hanton for attending the meeting and providing 
an update.  It was agreed that further dialogue could take place between both 
councils to provide updates and consider any opportunities for partnership 
working.  
 

67/OP    TECHNICAL SUPPORT HELPLINE   
 

 Two representatives of Citizens Online gave the Sub-Committee an update on 
the technical support project, which was now half-way through the two year 
contract.   The Sub-Committee was informed that 7 new “digital champion” 
volunteers had been recruited and trained, 14 organisations had been engaged 
with and 35 individual learners had benefitted from the service, which offered 
digital support sessions, remote telephone-based support, drop-in sessions at 
the Chatty Café, or in-person support at various locations.   
 
Advice was offered on how to use a device, how to make video calls, how to 
shop online, taking photos and general digital skills which enabled the user to 
connect with family, shops or organisations, thereby increasing independence 
and reducing isolation.   
 

Page 2



Older Persons Sub-Committee 17 NOVEMBER 2022  
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 29 

 The helpline had been publicised using a variety of media and it was clear that 
print media was receiving the best response. This would be a focus moving 
forward as well as electronic publicity aimed at relatives of people needing 
support and word of mouth recommendations from those benefitting from the 
scheme. Other potential sources of publicity would be explored.   

 
 A question was raised whether there were any schemes in the area that offered 

old/second hand devices.  It was confirmed that the Leighton-Linslade Helpers 
had a bank of second-hand phones which had been donated by local businesses 
and information regarding this would be passed through to Citizens Online.   

 
 Representatives of Citizens Online were thanked for their work to date, their 

comprehensive report and for attending the meeting. 
 
 RESOLVED to note the report.  

 
      68/OP  COMMUNITY AGENT SCHEME LAUNCH  
 

 A representative of Bedfordshire Rural Communities Charity gave an update on 
the Community Agent initiative which had launched in September 2022. The 
Sub-Committee also received a report outlining that the Agent had already 
supported 13 residents with a range of queries relating to matters such as health, 
money and carer support. The role of the Community Agent was to signpost the 
client to the appropriate organisation or service.  It was felt that the scheme had 
got off to a strong start due to good publicity and moving forward, the Agent 
would also be working closely with other sources of support for residents such 
as the Helping Hands “good neighbours” scheme and social prescribers. 

 
 RESOLVED to note the information.    

  
      69/OP     AGE FRIENDLY COMMUNITIES 
 

 The Sub-Committee received a presentation on an initiative led by the World 
Health Organisation in respect of developing ‘Age Friendly Communities’. 

 
 The Age-Friendly Communities Network adopted a 4-step programme cycle to 

help communities move towards becoming more age friendly.  The stages were 
to engage and understand, to plan strategically, to evaluate and act and to 
implement. On average, this was a five-year commitment, with two years to 
deliver a baseline assessment and action plan.  Membership was free and would 
provide access to examples of good practice across the country and beyond, 
which was considered could be beneficial to the Council. 

 
 It was agreed that in essence, the scheme reflected the work the Council had 

already undertaken and was already progressing and therefore would not result 
in any additional work, but could be of benefit and underpin the Council’s 
commitment to supporting older members of the community.  

 
 
 
 

Page 3



Older Persons Sub-Committee 17 NOVEMBER 2022  
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 30 

 RECOMMENDED to the Cultural & Economic Committee that the Council 
sign up to become part of the World Health Organisation Age Friendly City 
and Communities to expand networks and enjoy the benefits of best 
practice working. 

  
      70/OP     TABLET LOAN UPDATE 
 

 The Sub-Committee received an update report on the proposal to launch a  
digital tablet device lending scheme. This aspiration had been identified at the 
start of the 55UP project, with £15,000 budget allocated to this purpose. 
 
Following on from discussion at the previous meeting, a number of discussions 
had taken place with BRCC, who had themselves accessed grant funding to 
provide loan tablet devices and internet routers to those in need, to address 
digital exclusion. BRCC was running I.T. related schemes elsewhere in the 
county but had agreed to link up with the Town Council’s 55UP scheme to 
provide this service in Leighton-Linslade. The Town Council now had access to 
devices to lend out and detailed discussions had led to the development of a 
process for doing this, through referrals made by the digital champions of the 
Citizens Online digital support programme. This process would ensure residents 
could then be supported in use of the devices by the digital champions. Those 
in receipt of devices would need to sign a loan agreement.  
 
As this aspiration was able to be delivered without financial contribution, it was 
suggested that the funds could be used for further 55UP projects.  

 
    RESOLVED:   
 

(a) To note the report. 
(b) To endorse the proposed procedure to establish a tablet and router 

lending scheme. 
(c) To endorse that the £15,000 allocated to the tablet lending scheme 

continue to be ringfenced, to be used for other aspects of the 55UP 
programme. 

 
      71/OP       BUDGET REPORT 
 
 The Sub Committee received an update of the budget for the 55UP project to 

date.  Of the £80,000 originally allocated from the Future Projects budget,  
£18,604.40 remained available. The majority of this (£15,000) was due to funds 
not being required for the tablet device loan scheme.  

 
It was suggested that in light of future potential projects which could include 
supporting the day care offer for older people and tackling isolation in older 
men, these funds should continue to be ringfenced.  In addition, it was 
suggested that this work would be ongoing and consideration should be given 
to inclusion of a budget line in the annual revenue budget. In particular, it was 
noted that the current contract for the digital support helpline would end in 
October 2023, half way through the financial year, but given the positive 
response and impact, it was likely the council would want to continue to support 
the digital exclusion agenda.  

Page 4



Older Persons Sub-Committee 17 NOVEMBER 2022  
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 31 

 
 
Given the above and the recommendation to formally become an Age Friendly 
Community, it was suggested that the Older Persons Sub-Committee should 
continue past May 2023.  A proposal was made that it should continue for the 
first year of the new council and could then be considered further.    

 
 RECOMMENDED to the Cultural & Economic Services Committee: 
 

(i) That the remaining £18,604.40 in an earmarked reserve for the 55UP 
project continue to be ringfenced for additional projects to support 
older residents. 

(ii) That a new revenue budget line be established for Older People from 
1 April 2023, with an initial budget allocation of £9,000 to fund 
continuation of the digital support project from October 2023 – March 
2024 (noting that this reflected half yearly costs and that 
consideration might need to be given to increasing this from 2024-
25).  

(iii) That the Older Persons Sub-Committee continue through municipal 
year 2023-2024.  

 
      72/OP      NEXT STEPS 
 

Members of the group considered the next steps for the 55UP programme and 
the Sub Committee and agreed the success achieved should be shared with 
the Cultural and Economic Committee with a report stating key points and 
future plans taken to the next meeting in December 2023. 

 
 

 The meeting closed at 12:05 hours.  

 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 NOVEMBER 2022. 

 

 

 

Chair             2 MARCH 2023 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



1 
 

Leighton-Linslade Community Agent Update: 

1 November 2022 – 31 January 2023 

Older Persons Sub-Committee 2 March 2023 

 

BedsRCC’s Leighton-Linslade Community Agent, Caroline Whitelegge, began 

work on 1 Sept 2022, thanks to funding from Leighton Linslade Town Council.  

Caroline can be contacted by telephone on: 07498 625526 

Her email address is: leightonagent@bedsrcc.org.uk 

Caroline is funded for 14 hours a week, which is typically spread over three days 

each week (usually Mon-Weds).  She helps residents with issues such as: 

 accessing services and information which may be physically (through 

obtaining a Blue Badge enabling travel and parking closer to local 
services) or through gaining the knowledge to make choices and 

decisions. 
 obtaining benefits to which they are entitled such as Pension Credit, 

Working Tax Credit or Personal Independence Payments. 

 remaining in their own homes for longer, through Occupational Therapy 
assessments and provision of home help gadgets; or through local 

assistance from the Good Neighbour Scheme.  
 feeling safer and less isolated while living alone from a simple ‘Message in 

a Bottle’ alerting paramedics to key health info if the resident is found 

unconscious at home; to links to Bobby Van for stronger door and window 
security.  

 coping with the role of being a carer through links to Carers in Beds, 
Attendance Allowance and Carer’s Allowance applications, plus respite 
support to enable short breaks from caring responsibilities. 

 linking to local volunteers and organisations, from those that can help 
(such as the Good Neighbour Scheme, and specialist health support 

groups) through to those that can entertain (such as social clubs and 
activities). 

 participating in, and contributing to, community life, from becoming a 

volunteer and gaining the satisfaction of helping others; through to being 
able to take part in local events and opportunities. 

 
1. Summary of progress so far: 
 

As reported at the last meeting, Caroline ‘hit the ground running’ through 

September and October, due to LLTC’s publicity campaign which included 

information in Beelocal and About Town, posters across the town, and social 

media posts, as well as Caroline connecting with a range of individuals and 

groups to raise awareness of the Community Agent service.  

This publicity drive continued throughout this reporting period, with Caroline 

talking about her role in an interview on Leighton Buzz Radio, an article in the 

Leighton Buzzard Observer, visits to groups/events including Jazz up your Life, 

Time Banking, Church of the Good Shepherd, TACTIC Christmas lunch, Churches 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



2 
 

Together Poverty Seminar, regular visits to the Chatty Café, and ongoing LLTC 

social media posts.  

Caroline is also building good working relationships through contacts with U3A, 

Citizens Online, the Library Service, Leighton-Linslade Helping Hands, Citizens 

Advice, Health Connections and works closely with Beds RCC’s Community 

Wellbeing Champion (social prescriber), Karen Hall, to refer cases where 

additional, longer term support may be beneficial.   

Building a mutual awareness of services is already resulting in appropriate cross 

referrals, helping to achieve better outcomes for residents, and a more effective 

use of available resources.  

So much so that there has been a steady but manageable increase in client 

enquiries. January has been the busiest month to date for new enquiries, with 

21 residents seeking information and/or support with a range of issues, including 

3 returning clients who have previously received help from Caroline, and 1 new 

client who contacted her following a recommendation from a friend who Caroline 

helped with similar problems back in September.   

Where appropriate, Caroline has met with clients in a meeting room at the White 

House, at the Chatty Café, and has made 3 home visits where clients have a 

physical condition preventing them from leaving their home. In the majority of 

cases appropriate support can be provided via phone and/or email.    

Issues have ranged from Blue Badge application enquiries, through to complex 

situations, where clients are facing issues around coping with caring 

responsibilities, financial hardship, and serious physical and/or mental health 

problems. Support for carers is a recurring issue common to many enquiries.  

Examples of client comments:  

‘Caroline was very helpful & kept on following up. She made a considerable 

difference to my health and assisted in settling into what was a new community 

for me.’ JB 

‘Caroline, thanks for your help here, and I’m happy to report that in a few days I 

will have the blue badge. So many thanks. JB 

‘Caroline was helpful and I know that there is somebody to help older people, 

who do not have family living near, when a problem arises. We are 82 and 92 

years old so it’s nice to know there is support. I saw the item in the Beelocal 

magazine and although you did not highlight my problem I asked if you could 

help and was told you would try.’ SL 

Note: very few client feedback forms have been sent out to clients so far for a 

number of reasons: asking for forms to be completed is sometimes inappropriate 

due to the nature of clients’ issues, some cases are ongoing and so not fully 

resolved, and there was a general lull in activity during December. Obtaining 

more client feedback will be a focus in the next quarter.   

 

 

Page 8



3 
 

2. New partnership working opportunities: 

Tibbs Dementia Foundation 

In November, Caroline attended a seminar run by the Tibbs Dementia 

Foundation and met Sarah Russell (CEO). Tibbs were recently awarded a 

contract to deliver dementia support groups in the Leighton-Linslade area, as 

there is currently very little local specialist help available to families dealing with 

dementia. Tibbs are collecting information from residents and organisations in 

the town through surveys to help them design their offer to meet demand and 

need help to distribute these as widely as possible. Caroline set up and attended 

a meeting in December with Sarah Russell, Louise Evans (Tibbs’ Leighton-

Linslade Community Activist), Nina Bailey (LLTC), and Karen Hall (Beds RCC’s 

Community Wellbeing Champion in Leighton-Linslade). Opportunities to work 

together and support Tibbs in delivering their offer were discussed, and Caroline 

and Karen are now actively distributing surveys and referring clients to Tibbs 

services (online, etc) where appropriate.  

Men’s Sheds Association 

The local ambassador for the Men’s Sheds Association, Martin Young, contacted 

Caroline in November after seeing her role promoted in About Town. The charity 

helps create community spaces for men to connect, converse and create, and in 

doing so, help reduce loneliness and isolation. They are exploring opportunities 

to open a Men’s Shed in Leighton-Linslade and so asked if Caroline could help. 

She set up and attended a meeting with Martin, Nina Bailey (LLTC), Karen Hall 

(Beds RCC Community Wellbeing Champion), and Nicola Schofield (Beds RCC 

Green Social Prescriber) to discuss their ideas and understand how a shed 

project would work. Research and discussion around premises and resource is 

ongoing.  

3. Community Agent Plan for the next quarter: 

The intention is to: 

- continue to promote the Community Agent service through both traditional and 

online channels to reach not only those comfortable with IT but also those who 

for a range of reasons may be struggling to engage with their community and 

the support that is there for them 

- continue to meet and establish new working relationships with local groups and 

organisations to build knowledge of sources of support, and to set up referral 

links 

- continue to support Tibbs Dementia Foundation with their planning for 

provision of dementia support groups and activities in the town 

- distribute client feedback forms in a more systematic way for monitoring 

purposes 

 

NOTE: More information on Community Agent outputs and outcomes so 

far is given in the accompanying tables. 

Page 9



4 
 

Leighton-Linslade Community Agent Outputs (Sept 2022 – Jan 2023) 

 

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Total 

Total no. of residents supported (new enquiries):  

 

3 10 12 6 21 52 

No. of residents provided with information/ signposted to other sources of support: 

 

3 5 6 5 10 29 

No. supported with more detailed needs than the provision of information/ signposting (thus 

becoming ‘clients’) 

 

0 5 6 1 11 23 

       

Nature/no. of issues raised: 3 14 27 9 30 83 

Money matters 0 3 0 0 7 10 

Home Security/safety  0 0 3 0 0 3 

Home/garden maintenance  0 1 2 1 4 8 

Carer support 1 3 3 0 6 13 

Health 1 4 4 2 4 15 

Social activities (including volunteering) 1 1 3 1 3 9 

Transport 0 2 8 3 4 17 

Other 0 0 4 2 2 8 

       

Total no. issues resolved: 3 6 23 6 11 49 

Total no. of issues still ongoing: 0 8 4 3 19 34 

       

Total no. client contacts made (visits, phone calls, emails, etc) 3 21 26 17 36 103 

       

Total no. home visits made to clients 0 0 1 1 1 3 

Total no. one to one client meetings with clients at their other preferred venue – White House, 

Chatty café etc 

0 1 0 0 2 3 

       

Total no. community groups visited  1 1 1 5 2 10 

These were:       

Walk for Health, Chatty Café (regularly), Timebanking, LL Churches Together, Jazz Up Your Life, 

Tactic Christmas Lunch, Church of the Good Shepherd 

      

       

Total no. professional partnership connections initiated:  0 2 3 7 3 15 

P
age 10



5 
 

These were: Walk for Health, Health Connections, Citizens Advice, Citizens Online, Chatty Café, 

U3A, Timebanking, Tibbs Dementia Foundation, Men’s Sheds Association, CBC Library Service, 

LL Churches Together, Leighton Buzz Radio, CBC Adult Social Care OT, Age UK Bedfordshire,  

LL Helping Hands (Good Neighbours) 
 

 

      

       

       

Leighton Linslade Community Agent Outcomes (Sept 2022 – Jan 2023) Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Total 

Total no. clients reporting feeling more supported and / or connected to the community (based on 

feedback form response*) 

n/a* n/a* 1 1  2* 

Total no. clients reporting a greater sense of independence through info and resources to make  

choices and decisions (based on feedback form response*)  

n/a* n/a* 1 1  2* 

Total no. of clients gaining financial value through additional benefits secured or savings made **       

Total no. people referred to professional support agencies via Agent  2 3 3 15 23 

Total no. of people referred to Leighton-Linslade Helping Hands via Agent   3   3 

Total no. of people referred to other community organisations / activities via Agent 3 1 5 2 10 21 

 

*NOTE: feedback forms were available from November but very few have since been sent out – 

see note in report 

** Very difficult to monitor financial outcomes to date as Community Agent often signposts clients 

to other agencies for detailed benefit advice/checks and outcomes not reported or follow-up not 

appropriate. Other cases are ongoing.  

 

      

Leighton Linslade Community Agent  

Resident/Client Sources (info not always given) 

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Total 

Bee local magazine 3 9 2 1 1 16 

About Town    2  2 

Posters/flyers   1 2 7 10 

Word of Mouth     1 1 

Local agency/organisation      2 2 

LLTC website       

BRCC website       

Social Media  1   1 2 

Other (TACTIC lunch, Jazz Up your Life, TimeBanking)    5  5 

       

       

P
age 11



6 
 

Leighton Linslade Community Agent  

Resident/Client Demographics 

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Total 

Male 1 4 3 0 9 17 

Female 2 6 9 6 12 35 

       

Aged under 55       

56-75 2 5 2 4 7 20 

76-85 1 1 4 1 5 12 

Over 85  1 3  4 8 

Age not given  3 3 1 5 12 

       

P
age 12



7 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



   

1 

 

DIGITAL INCLUSION IN LEIGHTON-LINSLADE 

Summary Update November 2022 – February 2023 

This quarter has been quieter due to the time of year. The time has been used to seek new 

volunteers and to look for other opportunities in starting the digital conversation. Digital 

Champions have continued to provide support at the weekly drop in session and have been 

continuing to provide one to one digital support sessions.  

DIGITAL CHAMPIONS 

In this quarter, we have had an increased level of interest in the Digital Champion role. There 

were five expressions of interests for volunteering. Out of these five, we completed four 

informal interviews. Unfortunately, two were unable to commit to the project due to time 

constraints. Two however have progressed further and are now going through recruitment 

checks to be able to get them on board.  

We also had one volunteer who, on the last report, was going through the recruitment 

process. He has now gone through induction and training and is ready to start supporting 

learners.  

Our established Digital Champions have been continuing to provide valuable support to 

people attending the weekly drop in sessions at the Chatty Café and have also been providing 

one to one support sessions.  

To date, we have recruited nine volunteer Digital Champions (four Citizens Online volunteers 

and five embedded champions) with two potential champions going through the recruitment 

process.   

MARKETING  

We continue to promote the helpline through social media and partner with Leighton-

Linslade Town Council. We share our information on Facebook community groups for 

example Everything Leighton Buzzard.  

As we have highlighted before, advertising in print yields the most interest. We have arranged 

with the Bee Local Magazine to have an editorial in the March edition, and we will be trialling a 

paid advert for three editions following this. We have asked our volunteers to keep us 

informed of any other printed materials that we can use to promote the service.  

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



   

2 

 

PARTNERSHIP WORKING 

This quarter, we have approached the churches around Leighton Buzzard and Linslade to see 

if they would promote the project to their parishioners. We have also asked if possible, to be 

included in any newsletters. We formed a good contact through the Salvation Army who were 

interested in the offer and how it could benefit the members of their church.  

FACE TO FACE SESSIONS  

We continue to run a drop in digital skill session at the Chatty Café (Tactic Centre). This 

session runs on a Tuesday between 10-1 and two Digital Champions attend.  

One of our Digital Champions who provides support at the Chatty Café worked with one lady 

to be able to send emails from her tablet:  

‘She was having difficulties with a generic email app and was getting frustrated. I showed her 

how to logon to her email account through a browser where she was able to send her emails 

from. We agreed to add the web page as a shortcut on her home page. She didn’t have to deal 

with the generic app anymore and she was happy with that’.  

Another lady came to the Chatty Café as she wanted help to register online with her GP and to 

learn how to complete a grocery shop online. Our Digital Champion volunteer supported her 

with these:  

‘We worked through being an online patient at the surgery and also using the surgery website to 

e.g. ask the doctor a question. We also managed to set her up with Tesco for online shopping 

and then deleted the basket after trialling it. All in all a good session’. 

Learners often show appreciation after the sessions:  

‘She asked me how much she owed me at the end of the session and was surprised when I said it 

was for free!’ 

When learners ring up the helpline, they are giving a choice of remote support, attending the 

drop in session or a one to one session with a volunteer. Often they will choose the one to one 

support which takes place in a public venue (mainly Leighton Buzzard library).  

The Digital Champions have been busy in this quarter, providing good quality sessions.  

One particular session included some more practical digital skills along with some fun:  

‘Went through emails, sending, receiving and replying, adding photo's as attachments. We 

found approx. 30 emails in her inbox with several wishing her 'Happy Birthday' from a few years 

Page 16



   

3 

 

back with photos. Showed her how to use her camera for photos and videos, also how to do 

'selfies' :-)’.  

 The volunteers went along to Greenfields Extra Care housing to attend a coffee morning with 

a Leighton-Linslade Health and Wellbeing Coach. They spoke to residents there about the 

project and gave out the helpline contact details. They also provided some ad hoc digital 

advice during the morning.  

During this quarter, we have supported 17 learners (with 5 of these learners returning for 

additional sessions).  

TABLET LOAN SCHEME 

The tablet loan scheme was launched in early December 2022. Our Digital Champion 

volunteers attended the launch which was organised by Leighton-Linslade Town Council. 

They were shown the devices and talked through the referral process.  

We have had two contacts through the helpline. One person contacted us after seeing news of 

the launch in the Leighton Buzzard Observer. She received a loan of a prepaid router,  

The other person contacted us to ask for details of the drop in sessions. Once there, he spoke 

to one of our volunteers who referred him for a tablet. The learner has since had a few 

sessions with the volunteer and they are trying to gain access to his emails. The learner had 

set up an email account a long time ago with a company who are no longer operating in the 

UK so it is proving to be a challenge, however the volunteer is persevering!  

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



 
 
 
 
 

Older Persons Sub- Committee      
 

Date:  2nd March 2023   

 

Title:  55UP Project- Application for UK Network of Age Friendly 
Communities and WHO Global Network of Age Friendly Cities and 
Communities  

 

Purpose of the Report:  
To provide updates on application for the Age-Friendly Networks and consider next 
steps  

 

Contact Officer:  
Nina Bailey, Cultural and Economic Support Officer  
 

 

Corporate Objective/s To tackle loneliness and isolation in older residents 
through digital inclusion    

Implications:   

Financial Yes Small cost anticipated for 
launch of survey  

Human Resources Yes Support Officer to create, 
administer and analyse survey  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

Yes To carry out Age Friendly 
survey for residents aged 55 
and over   

Procedural/Legal No  

Risk/Health and Safety No  

Environmental Aims No  

 
 

1  RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

Should the Committee be minded, the proposals are: 
 

1.1 To note the report  
 
 
1.2 To endorse the proposal to carry out a ‘Leighton-Linslade Age Friendly 

Community Survey’ to hear views from residents aged 55 and up.  
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



 
  
1.3 To approve the draft version and timescale for a ‘Leighton-Linslade Age 

Friendly Community Survey’ 
 

2  BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 Established in 2012, the UK Network of Age Friendly Communities is a growing 
movement of over 50 towns, cities and counties across the country who seek 
to support each other sharing best practice as to how to support older people 
within their communities.  The UK Network is affiliated with the WHO Global 
Network of Age Friendly Cities and Communities and follows the same 
structure. To join the UK network, one must also apply to join the WHO Global 
Network.  

 
2.2   To apply to join the UK and WHO Global Network of Age Friendly 

Communities, the Town Council is required pass a resolution as a statement 
of intent alongside a written commitment towards becoming an Age-Friendly 
Community signed by the Town Mayor. An application form will be completed 
by Supporting Officer.  

 
   
3   NETWORK APPLICATION UPDATES 
 
3.1   The Town Council resolution was passed on January 30th 2023 and this will 

be evidenced in the application to join both the UK Network and WHO Global 
Network of Age Friendly Cities and Communities.  

 
3.2 Draft written commitment has been signed and approved by Town Mayor and 

will be included in Town Council’s application to join both the UK Network and 
WHO Global Network of Age Friendly Cities and Communities. 

 
3.3 Deadline for current round of applications to join the UK Network of Age 

Friendly Communities is 3rd March 2023 with final decision and approval 
commencing 22nd March 2023. Leighton- Linslade Town Council application 
will be sent prior to this.  

 

4  PROPOSALS 

 

4.1  Assuming Leighton-Linslade Town Council’s application to the UK Network of 
Age Friendly Communities is approved, it is recommended to begin their 
suggested programme cycle structure (see below) and the Town Council 
commence the ‘Engage and Understand’ stage to understand the current 
concerns and views of residents aged 55 and up.  

 

  
 
 

Page 20



 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.2  As part of the Town Council’s ‘Engage and Understand’ focus, it is suggested 
Councillors endorse the proposal to carry out a ‘Leighton-Linslade Age Friendly 
Community Survey’, please see draft attached. The purpose of the survey is to 
capture the current views of residents aged 55 up across a wide spectrum of 
issues including community, public buildings/spaces, transportation, health, 
social interactions and current/future 55UP initiatives. The previous 55UP 
survey took place in 2020, with Covid- 19 affecting individuals lives in so many 
ways, it’s possible residents now have different priorities and concerns. 
Councillors are encouraged to share their comments on the draft survey and 
changes will be made accordingly.   

 
 
4.3  It is proposed the survey be made available in paper form, subject to 

agreement from the organisations, at Leighton Buzzard Library, local GP 
surgeries, retirement housing blocks, Leighton Buzzard Day Centre and The 
Chatty Café. Local voluntary and social organisations will also be contacted to 
see if members would like to participate. An online version of the survey will 
also be available across the Town Council’s social media platforms with 
additional QR codes in other public spaces such as community noticeboards 
and in the About Town newsletter.   

 
4.4 Officers to complete further training with Break Through Communications on 

carrying out effective surveys and consultations on March 17th 2023.  
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 
  
5 TIMESCALES  
 
 
5.1   It is hoped and anticipated that the Town Council’s application to join the UK 

Network of Age Friendly Communities will be approved by the end of March 
2023 and their application to the WHO Global Network of Age Friendly Cities 
and Communities approved shortly after this proposed date.  

 
 
5.2  Officers will aim to launch the proposed ‘Leighton- Linslade Age Friendly 

Community Survey’ early May 2023.  
 
5.3  It is anticipated that findings from the survey be shared with Councillors at 

August 2023 Older Persons Sub Committee Meeting, with updates in June 
2023.  

 
  
6 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There is no financial cost for membership of the UK Network of Age Friendly 

Communities or the WHO Global Network of Age Friendly Cities and 
Communities. Support Officer time will be required to submit application and 
create, launch and analyse survey data.  

 
6.2 It is anticipated there will be a small cost for survey printing, survey boxes and 

a potential advertising campaign on social media.  
 

7 FUTURE CONSIDERATIONS  
 
 
7.1   A ‘Leighton-Linslade Age Friendly Community Survey’ will help to inform 

future projects for the 55UP programme and help analyse current initiatives 
including the digital skills programme.  

 
 
 
END. 
  

Page 22



Leighton– Linslade Age Friendly Community Survey 

 
Thank you for taking part in our Age-Friendly Community Survey. We would like to learn more about your current experienc-

es living in Leighton-Linslade, what is working well and what we can improve, to ensure that Leighton-Linslade is a great 

place to live. All your responses will be kept anonymous and information we gather from this survey will be kept in line with 

our data and privacy policy.  

This survey will take about 20 minutes to complete.  

Your Home and Community  

Q1) Are you a resident of Leighton-Linslade?    Q1a) Are you completing this survey yourself or on  

      behalf or someone? 
Yes 

No 

Not sure 

Q2) What is the name of your community? For some people, this would mean the town in which they live or it 

could be their neighbourhood or their development.   

Q3) How long have you lived in your community?  

Less than 5 years  

5– 15 years  

16– 25 years  

26– 35 years  

36– 45 years  

46 years or more 

P1 

Myself 

Behalf of someone 

Q4) How would you rate your current community as a place for people to live as they age?  

Excellent 

Very good 

Good 

Fair 

Poor 

Page 23



P2 

Q5) Thinking about your future years, would you consider moving? 

Yes within the same community 

Yes to a different community  

No I want to stay in my current residence  

Q7) How important is it for you to be able to live independently in your home as you age?  

Extremely important 

Very important  

Somewhat important 

Not very important 

Not at all important 

Q6) If you would consider moving, please state what your reason may be….  

 

Wanting a smaller size home 

Wanting a larger size home  

The cost of maintaining your current residence 

Wanting a home that will help you live independently as you age, e.g. a home 

without stairs 

Other please specify: 

Q8) Some people find that they need or want to move out of their community as they get older. If you were to consider 

moving out of your current community, would any of the reasons below be a factor? Tick all that apply. 

 

Your personal safety and security  

Wanting to move to an area that has better health care facilities 

Wanting to be closer to family 

Needing more access to public transportation 

Wanting to live in a different climate 

Wanting to live in an area that has a lower cost of living 

Wanting to live in an area with better opportunities for social interaction 

Page 24



P3 

Q9) Some people find that they need to make modifications to their residence to enable them to stay there for as 

long as possible. Does your current residence need any major repairs, modifications or changes to enable you to 

stay there for as long as possible?  

Yes 

No 

Not sure 

Public Buildings & Spaces  

Q10) Would you rate your community as excellent, very good, good, fair or poor on having the following?  

A) Pavements that are in good condition, safe for pedestri-

ans and accessible for wheelchairs or other assisted mo-

bility devices……. 

B) Well-lit, accessible, safe streets and cross roads for all 

users…... 

C) Audio and visual pedestrian crossings……. 

D) Separate pathways for cyclists and pedestrians…. 

F) Easy to read traffic signs…….. 

Excellent Very good  Good Fair Poor 

G) Enforced speed limits…….. 

E) Well-maintained streets……... 

Q11) Would you rate your community as excellent, very good, good, fair or poor on having the following?  

A) Well maintained parks…………………………….... 

B) Safe parks…………………………………..….. 

Excellent Very good  Good Fair Poor 

C) Public buildings and spaces including bathrooms that are 

accessible to people of different physical abilities…….. 

D) Enough benches for resting in public areas like parks, 

the high street and around public buildings…... 

E) Conveniently located public parking including  

disabled parking ………………………….. 

F) Affordable public parking…………………………….. 

Page 25



P4 

Q12) How often do you visit Leighton-Linslade Town Centre?   

Weekly 

Twice a month  

Once a month  

When there’s a special event e.g. The Easter Market  

A few times a year  

Never 

Q13) Would you rate Leighton-Linslade Town Centre as excellent, very good, good, fair or poor on having the follow-

ing?  

A) Range of shops and amenities ……………….... 

B) Enough benches for resting…………………………. 

Excellent Very good  Good Fair Poor 

C) Pavements accessible for wheelchair use and assisted 

mobility devices…………………………. 

D) Clean and well maintained toilets including disabled  

toilets………………………………………………. 

 

Q14) Are there any barriers preventing you from accessing Leighton-Linslade Town Centre?   

Q15) In your opinion, how can Leighton-Linslade Town Centre be improved?  

Personal and Community Safety  

Q16) How safe and secure do you feel within your residence?  

Quite safe Very safe Mostly safe but occasionally not Regularly feel unsafe 

Q17) Are there any initiatives that could make you feel safer in your residence?  

E) Easy and convenient public transport to and from  

the high street……………... 

Page 26



P5 

Q18) How safe and secure do you feel when frequenting Leighton-Linslade?   

Quite safe Very safe Mostly safe but occasionally not Regularly feel unsafe 

Q19) Are there any barriers preventing you from feeling safe and secure when frequenting public spaces such as the 

parks and the high streets?   

Q20) Would you rate Leighton-Linslade Town as excellent, very good, good, fair or poor on having the following?  

A) CCTV cameras ……………….... 

B) Active community schemes e.g. Street Watch, Neigh-

bourhood Watch…………. 

Excellent Very good  Good Fair Poor 

C) Police and Community Officer presence……... 

Q21) In your opinion, are there any community safety measures you would like to see undertaken in Leighton-Linslade?  

Transportation 

Q22) How do you usually get around your community for things like shopping, visiting the doctor, running errands or 

other things? Please tick all that apply.  

Walk 

Drive yourself 

Have others drive you  

Use a taxi  

Use special transportation service, 

such as one for seniors or persons with  

disabilities 

Use public transportation 

Ride a bike  

Some other way  

I do not get out of the house  

Page 27



P6 

Q23) Would you rate your community as excellent, very good, good, fair or poor on having the following?  

A) Accessible and convenient public transportation…… 

 
B) Affordable public transportation….…….. 

C) Well maintained public transportation vehicles……. 

 

E) Safe public transportation stops or areas that are  

accessible to people of varying physical abilities…… 

D) Timely public transportation….…. 

Excellent Very good  Good Fair Poor 

F) Special transportation services of people with disabilities  

and older adults……………………………. 

Health and Wellness  

Q24) Thinking about health care professionals in your community, would you rate your community as excellent, very 

good, good, fair or poor on having the following?  

Excellent Very good  Good Fair Poor 

A) Well– trained certified home health care providers..…… 

D) Health care professionals who speak different 

languages…... 

E) Respectful and helpful hospital and clinic staff…... 

B) Affordable home health care providers……….. 

C) A variety of health care professionals including  

specialists……………………………………………………… 

Q25) Thinking about health and wellness services in your community, would you rate your community as excellent, 

very good, good, fair or poor on having the following?  
Excellent Very good  Good Fair Poor 

A) Affordable health and wellness programmes and classes 

B) Affordable fitness activities specifically geared to older  

adults 

C) Affordable home care services including personal care 

and housekeeping 

Page 28



P7 

 

Social Participation, Inclusion and Education Opportunities  

Q26) How often do you have contact with family, friends or neighbours who don’t live with you?   

Everyday 

Several times a week, but not every day 

Once a week 

Once a month 

Less than monthly 

Never 

Q27) How often you feel the following?  

A) I lack companionship ……………………...…... 

Often Sometimes Rarely Never 

B) I feel left out  ……………………...……………... 

C) I feel isolated from others ……………………...

Q28) If you were in trouble, do you have friends or family who can help you at any time of the day or night?  

Yes 

No 

A) Conveniently located entertainment venues……………….. 

B) Activities geared specifically towards older adults……….. 

Excellent Very good  Good Fair Poor 

Q29) Would you rate your community as excellent, very good, good, fair or poor on having the following?   

C) Activities that offer senior discounts…………………….. 

D) Activities that are affordable for all residents………….. 

E) Activities that involve both younger and older people…… 

F) Local schools that involve older adults in events and  

activities…………………………………………………………... 

G) Continuing education classes or social clubs to pursue  

new interests and hobbies……………………………………. 

H) Driver education or refresher courses……………………... 

Page 29



P8 

 

Q30) Would you rate your community as excellent, very good, good, fair or poor on having the following?   

Excellent Very good  Good Fair Poor 

A) Access to community information in one central source…. 

B) Clearly displayed printed community information with 

large lettering…………………………………………………….. 

C) Free access to computers and the internet in public plac-

es such as the library and government buildings…………….. 

D) Community information that is delivered in person to peo-

ple who may have difficulty or may not be able to leave their 

home………………………………………………………………. 

E) Community information that is available in different lan-

guages……………………………………………………………. 

Volunteering and Civic Engagement  

A) A range of volunteer activities to choose from…….. 

B) Opportunities for older adults to participate in decision 

making bodies such as community councils or committees… 

Excellent Very good  Good Fair Poor 

Q31) Would you rate your community as excellent, very good, good, fair or poor on having the following?   

C) Easy to find information on available local volunteer    

opportunities……………………………………………………... 

D) Transportation to and from volunteer activities for those 

who need it……………………………………………………. 

Digital Skills  

Q32) Do you have internet access in your home?   

Yes 

No 

Q33) Do you own a smart device e.g. smart phone or tablet?  

Yes 

No 

Q34) How confident do you feel using a smart device e.g. smart phone or tablet?   

Very confident  

Somewhat confident 

Not confident  

Q35) Would you be interested in receiving free digital skills support?  

Yes please– (please see leaflet at the back of this survey)  

No thank you  

Page 30



P9 

 

Q36) Would you be interested in the Town Council’s free tablet and router lending scheme?  

Yes please– (please see leaflet at the back of this survey)  

No thank you  

Q37) How do you feel about digital skills?   

I’m confident with digital skills and I can access all I need to  

I’m not that confident with digital skills but I can do enough to get by 

I am not that confident with digital skills and I’d like to learn more  

I don’t have an interest in learning digital skills  

Other, please specify: ______________________________________________________________ 

I’d like to learn more about digital skills but I don’t have access to the internet/ smart device 

Leighton-Linslade Town Council Initiatives  

Q38) How often do you attend the Leighton Buzzard Markets?   

Weekly 

Twice a month  

Once a month  

When there’s a special event e.g. The Easter Market  

A few times a year  

Never 

Q39) Is there anything you’d like to see us change about the market to make it more accessible?   

Q40) Have you attended the Chatty Café on Tuesdays 10:00-13:00 at the TACTIC Centre?   

Weekly 

Twice a month  

Once a month  

A few times a year  

Never 

Q41) Are there any barriers preventing you from accessing initiatives such as the market or Chatty Café?  

Page 31



P10 

Q42) Where do you hear about Leighton– Linslade Town Council events and initiatives? Please tick all that apply.   

Social Media e.g. Facebook  

Leighton Linslade Town Council website 

About Town magazine 

Bee Local  

Leighton Buzzard Observer  

Posters/Flyers  

Buzz Radio 

Other: Please specify 

__________________ 

Q43) Are there any other initiatives that you’d like to see Leighton Linslade Town Council undertake?   

Demographics 

Q44) Are you male or female?   

Male 

Female 

Q45) Please tick your age group:  

55– 65 years 

66– 75 years 

76– 85 years 

86– 95 years 

96 + years 

Thank you very much for completing this survey. 

Your assistance in providing this information is very much appreciated.  

Do you have any other comments you would like to add?  

 

 

 

Please place your survey in the box provided.  

Page 32


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	6 COMMUNITY AGENT SCHEME UPDATE
	7 TECHNICAL SUPPORT HELPLINE
	8 UK NETWORK OF AGE FRIENDLY COMMUNITIES REPORT
	Leighton Linslade Age Friendly Comumunities Survey


